
  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street 

Spartanburg, SC  29306 
Monday, September 10, 2018 

5:30 p.m. 
                                                                      

I. Moment of Silence 
  

II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. Approval of the Minutes of the August 27, 2018 City Council Meeting 
 

IV. Approval of the Agenda of the September 10, 2018 City Council Meeting  
 

V.   Public Comment 
 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 

VI.  Resolution  
   
  A. Approving Donation of Property at 629 Massachusetts Blvd. (Tax Map  
  Parcel Number 7-16-13-004.00) 
  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 
 
VII.  Other Business 
 
  A. Approval of Lawrence Johnson Sr. Lane Infrastructure Improvements 
  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 
 
  B. Award of Bid for Holly Drive Culvert Improvement Project 
  Presenter:  Jay Squires, Streets and Storm Water Manager 
 
 C. Award of Contract for Infrastructure Improvement Projects 
  Presenter:  Tim Carter, Engineering Administrator 
 
VIII.  Ordinance–Dr. T.K. Gregg Community Center Interim Financing Second Reading 
 
  A. Ordinance Providing for the Issuance and Sale of a City of Spartanburg,  
  South Carolina, Special Obligation Bond (Hospitality Fee Pledge – Junior  
  Lien), in the Principal Amount of Not Exceeding $12,500,000; Authorizing  
  the Mayor or the City Manager to Determine Certain Matters with Respect  
  to the Bond; Prescribing the Form and Details of Such Bond; and Other  
  Matters Relating Thereto (Second Reading) 
  Presenter:  Dennis Locke, Finance Director   
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
                                          SOUTH CAROLINA 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 
Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a 
Public Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 
 
 
 



  

* Non-Agenda Items 
  City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter   
  pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel  
  matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item  
  considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City  
  Council. The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the  
  designated time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 
 
 *Agenda Items 
  City Code Sec. 2-56. Addressing Council, Comments or Remarks to Council on Agenda Items Not Requiring Public Hearing. On    
  agenda items not requiring a Public Hearing, please provide to the City Clerk prior to the opening of the meeting, your desire to  
  speak on an agenda item. Remarks shall be limited to five (5) minutes and total remarks on any agenda item shall not exceed  
  twenty (20) minutes. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 IX.     City Council Updates 
     
X. Hiring of a City Manager 
 Presenter:  Mayor pro tem Jerome Rice 
 
 A. Executive Session Pursuant to Section 3-4-40 (2) Concerning a Personnel  
  Matter Related to the City Manager Position 
 
            B. Action Resulting from Discussion Held in Executive Session Pursuant to                            
              Section 3-4-40 (2) Concerning a Personnel Matter Related to the City 
 Manager Position If Necessary 
 
 
 XI.     Adjournment 
 
 

City Council Agenda 
Page Two – September 10, 2018 



  
 

          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

III.  



1 
 

  
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street 

Spartanburg, SC  29306 
Monday, August 27, 2018 

5:30 p.m. 
 

(These minutes are subject to approval  
at the September 10, 2018 City Council meeting.) 

 
City Council met this date with the following Councilmembers present: Mayor Junie 
White, Mayor pro tem Jerome Rice, Councilmembers Erica Brown, Sterling Anderson, 
Alan Jenkins, Max Hyde, and Ruth Littlejohn. City Manager Ed Memmott and Interim 
City Attorney Larry Flynn were also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was posted with 
the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. All City 
Council meetings are recorded for a complete transcript. 

                                                                      
I. Moment of Silence - observes 

  
II. Pledge of Allegiance - recited 

 
III. Approval of the Minutes of the August 13, 2018 City Council Meeting – 

Councilmember Jenkins made a motion to approve the minutes as received. 
Councilmember Littlejohn seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 

IV. Approval of the Agenda of the August 27, 2018 City Council Meeting –  
Mayor pro tem Rice made a motion to approve the agenda as received. Councilmember 
Jenkins seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0.  
 

V.   Public Comment 
 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
Harold Mitchell and Melvin Stroble spoke in favor of a solar farm at the Arkwright 
Dump site. 
Willa Reeder invited Council to the Forest Park Block Party Reunion Cook Out on 
September 8 from 3:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 
 

VI.  Resolution Designating the Week of September 9-15, 2018 as Arts in                           
  Education Week 
  Presenter:  Councilmember Erica Brown 
 Councilmember Brown read the resolution and presented it to Jennifer Evins, President 
 and CEO of the Chapman Cultural Center. 
 
 



2 
 

VII.  Consent Agenda 
 
 A. Ordinance to Amend the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina Zoning  
  Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element, by Amending  
  Section 206, Changes to District Boundaries, Specifically Parcel # 7-12-08- 
  045.00; 046.00; 047.00; 048.00; 049.00; 050.00; 051.00; 061.00; 062.00; 063.00 
  and 064.00; Located on 169 Avant Street; 121 Garrett; 125 Garrett Street;  
  156 Oakwood Avenue; 154 Oakwood Avenue; 137 Avant Street; 155 Avant  
  Street; 157 Avant Street; and 161 Avant Street; Which are Zoned R-8 or  
  LOD, with a Land Use Designation of General Residential District or   
  Limited Office District to Zone R-6 PDD, with a Land Use Designation of  
  General Residential Planned Development District and Providing for   
  Severability and an Effective Date (Second Reading) 
  Presenter:  Natalia Rosario, Planner III 
 
     B. Authorizing the City Manager to Assist in Accepting a Donation and   
  Transfer Property Located at 110 Gibson Street, Block Map Number 7-16- 
  05, Parcel 055.00 and Property Located at 122 Gibson Street, Block Map  
  Number 7-16-05, Parcel 052.00 (Second Reading) 
  Presenter:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 
  Mayor pro tem Rice made a motion to approve the consent agenda as   
  received. Councilmember Littlejohn seconded the motion, which carried   
  unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
VIII.  Ordinance – Second Reading  
 
 A. Approving an Amendment to the Development Agreement Between the City  
  of Spartanburg and Forge Capital Partners, LLC (Second Reading) 
  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
  Councilmember Anderson made a motion to approve the ordinance as   
 presented on second reading. Councilmember Brown seconded the motion,  
  which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 

 IX.     Other Business 
 
            A. Southside Community Development Initiatives 
 Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
          Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 
 Mr. Memmott and Mr. Livingston reviewed past, present and future initiatives 
 for the Southside Community: 

Past Housing, Community, and Commercial Redevelopment 
Tobias Hartwell HOPE VI (SHA) 

Carlisle Street Redeployment (Preservation Trust/MBF) 
Bomar Ave Improvements (State Housing/SHA) 

202 Elderly Housing Development (Upstate Homeless Coalition/SHA 
Shaw-Wilmont (SHD/ReGenesis) 



3 
 

Collins Park HOPE VI (SHA) 
South Church Retail Plaza (City/Private support) 

Wright Center Office Complex (SHA) 
Carver Middle School (District 7) 

Mary H. Wright Elementary (District 7) 
Spartanburg Preparatory School 

ReGenesis Community Health Center 
Church Street Lofts (Private) 

440 S. Church (City Dev. Services Office) 
NIP and NSP Scattered Sites 

Past Parks and Recreation Improvements 
C.C Woodson Community Center (MBF, SHA) 

C.C Woodson Football Field ( NFL Grant) 
Outdoor Classroom/ Trail (BMW) 

Priscilla Rumley Improvements (MBF) 
Skate Park (Coalition for Active Youth) 

Mary Black Rail Trail (MBF) 
Rail Tail Dog Park (CAY and PAL) 

Duncan Park Improvements (District 7) 
S. Converse Park (SCNA/MBF/STATE) 

C.C Woodson Playground ( M. Lattimore/Select Health) 
Willow Oaks Park (Hampton Heights NA) 

Current/Future – Strategic Parks and Recreation Projects and Programs 
Current 

• Mary H. Wright Greenway Improvements 
• Urban League of The Upstate                                                                                             

 
                                                    Future                                                                                     
   Parks and Recreation Advisory Group                                                          
       Youth and Family Development                                                                                      
          Community Resource Center 
 

City-Wide Programs Southside Application 
Homebuyer Program 

Homebuyer Purchase Rehab Program 
Property Maintenance Enforcement 

 
Southside Specific Program/Activities 
Lawrence Johnson Sr. Ln Infrastructure 

Forest Park Homeownership – ReGenesis 
Caulder Avenue Homeownership 

Camp Croft Redevelopment – SHA 
Park Improvements 

Neighborhood Branding/Marketing 
  After discussion, Councilmember Littlejohn made a motion to accept the report  
  and plan forward presented by staff on the Southside Community  Development  



4 
 

  Initiatives. Mayor pro tem Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously  
  7 to 0. 
 
B. Discussion of the Potential Development of a Solar Energy Farm at the 
 Arkwright Dump Site 
 Presenters:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
            Mike Garrett, Arkwright Consultant 
            Jay Squires, Streets and Stormwater Manager 
 Mr. Memmott presented the item to Council as follows: 
 “Over the past 18 months, staff has become aware of potential interest in 
 development of a solar farm at the Arkwright Dump.  While solar farm 
 development is worthy of serious consideration, it is important that Council have a 
 full understanding of the dump, how it was closed, and the potential risks 
 associated with the development of a solar farm.    
  Mr. Memmott and Mr. Garrett provided a report on the:  
   

  ● Dumpsite History 
  ● Project Expenses 
  ● Dump Closure Construction (Methods and Materials)  
  ● Ongoing Monitoring Obligations 
  ● Potential Future Obligations For Groundwater Remediation  

 
  After a full briefing on the dumpsite, staff will want to engage Council in   
  discussion on whether it wants to move forward with consideration of any   
  proposal for solar farm development.” 
  Mr. Garrett and Mr. Memmott reviewed all of the above mentioned subjects with  
  Council. (Detailed slides are available from the PowerPoint for this meeting.) 
     
 After lengthy discussion, Mayor White made a motion not to allow a solar farm 
 to be placed at the Arkwright Dump site. Councilmember Anderson seconded the 
 motion. The motion carried 4 to 3. Councilmembers Brown, Jenkins, and 
 Littlejohn voted against the motion. Mayor White, Mayor pro tem Rice, and 
 Councilmembers Hyde and Anderson voted in favor of the motion. 
 
           C. Review of Proposed Financing Plan for the Dr. T.K. Gregg Community 
 Center 
 Presenters:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
            Mitch Kennedy, Community Development Director 
 Mr. Memmott explained in great detail the financing structure for the Dr. TK 
 Gregg Community Center. Mr. Kennedy reviewed the latest rendering of the 
 facility with Council. 
  



5 
 

 
            Council received the report as information. 
 
 D.   Ordinance Providing for the Issuance and Sale of a City of Spartanburg,  
  South Carolina, Special Obligation Bond (Hospitality Fee Pledge – Junior  
  Lien), in the Principal Amount of Not Exceeding $12,500,000; Authorizing  
  the Mayor or the City Manager to Determine Certain Matters with Respect  
  to the Bond; Prescribing the Form and Details of Such Bond; and Other  
  Matters Relating Thereto (First Reading) 
  Presenter:  Dennis Locke, Finance Director    
   Mr. Locke presented the item to Council as follows: 
   “Staff is requesting first reading approval of an ordinance that that will authorize  
  the borrowing of approximately $12.5 million for the interim financing of the Dr.  
  TK Gregg Community Center.    
 
  Approval of the interim financing plan will allow the city to proceed with the  
  construction of the facility while staff continues to pursue New Markets Tax  
  Credit funding.”   
  Mayor pro tem Rice made a motion to approve the ordinance as presented on  
  first reading. Councilmember Littlejohn seconded the motion, which carried  
  unanimously 7 to 0.  
 
   



6 
 

X. City Council Updates 
 Councilmember Hyde expressed condolences to Kensley Drummond, Multimedia 
 Assistant, in the City’s Communications and Marketing department, on the death of 
 her mother. 
 Councilmember Anderson shared that he presented a proclamation to Miss South 
 Carolina Davia Bunch at the send-off party for the Miss America Pageant. 
 Councilmember Brown shared that Le Spice restaurant had opened Downtown. She 
 reminded everyone of the Groovin’ in the Park event at Barnet Park on September 2 from 
 4:30 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. She thanked Terril Bates, Executive Director of Spartanburg 
 Housing Authority, for her service to Spartanburg and wished her well on her new 
 position. 
 Councilmember Littlejohn also wished Ms. Bates well. She shared that she presented a 
 proclamation to Liz Patterson at the League of Women Voter’s event. She shared that she 
 toured USC Upstate with the new Chancellor and that she was very impressed with him 
 and his enthusiasm. She shared that she attended the first portion of the City of 
 Spartanburg Citizen’s Academy on August 21. She shared that her community meeting 
 held on August 23 at CC Woodson Center was well attended and successful. She shared 
 that she took a tour of the Franklin School on August 15 and was very impressed. She 
 shared that she welcomed students back to school at Mary Wright Elementary on August 
 20. 
 Councilmember Jenkins shared that he would be attending the United Way of the 
 Piedmont Community Corporate Breakfast the following Thursday. He shared that he 
 attended the Spartanburg Regional Hospice event held at the Spartanburg Shrine Club 
 with many Bikers from the area. He applauded the many teachers and administrators for a 
 successful first day back to school. 
 
XI. Executive Sessions – Mayor pro tem Rice made a motion to adjourn to executive session 
 for the reason stated. Councilmember Littlejohn seconded the motion, which carried 
 unanimously 7 to 0. Council adjourned to executive session at 7:47 p.m. 
 
             A. Executive Session Pursuant to Section 3-4-40 (2) Concerning a Personnel 
 Matter Related to the City Manager position 
 
             Council reconvened to regular session at 9:03 p.m. Mayor White stated that   
             discussion was held with no decisions made. 
 
 XII.     Adjournment – Councilmember Jenkins made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  
             Councilmember Anderson seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0.  
             The meeting adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
             __________________________ 
 Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 



  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VI. A   



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Ed Memmott, City Manager     
 
FROM:  Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 
      
SUBJECT: Donation of Property at 629 Massachusetts Blvd  
 
DATE:  September 10, 2018   
   
 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
The owner of a vacant parcel located at 629 Massachusetts Blvd has offered to donate the parcel to the 
City.  This lot is located in close proximity to the Spartanburg Downtown Memorial Airport. The City 
will cover the cost of title searches and closing cost. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Approval of Resolution accepting the donation of the property located at 629 Massachusetts Blvd.  
 

 

BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:   
 
Minimal costs for deed preparation and deed filing.   
 



 
A RESOLUTION 

APPROVING DONATION OF PROPERTY AT 629 MASSACHUSETTS BLVD 
(TAX MAP PARCEL NUMBER 7-16-13-004.00) 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg (the “City”) continues its interest in support efforts at the 
Spartanburg Downtown Airport; and 
 
WHEREAS, the owner of a vacant lot located at 629 Massachusetts Blvd. (Tax Map Parcel 
Number 7-16-13-004.00) hereafter the “Property” is willing to donate the parcel to the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is in the public interest to accept the donation of Tax 
Map Parcel Number 7-16-13-004.00.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Mayor and Members of City Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
Section 1.  To accept the donation of the Property as described herein. 
 
Section 2.  The owner shall execute and deliver a deed, in a form approved by the City Attorney, 

to the City conveying the Property described herein. 
 
Section 3.  This Resolution shall become effective upon the date of enactment. 

 
DONE AND RATIFIED this ______ day of ________________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
     _________________________________________   
      Junie L. White, Mayor. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk. 
 
 
 
 



Spartanburg County, SC

Developed by

Parcel ID 7-16-13-004.00

Sec/Twp/Rng n/a

Property
Address

629 MASSACHUSETTS

BLVD

SPARTANBURG

Alternate
ID

154010

Class Non-Qualified Regular Residential

Vacant

Acreage n/a

Owner
Address

SIMPSON INVESTMENTS

LLC 

616 WEYMOUTH DRIVE 

SPARTANBURG, SC 29302

District n/a

Brief Tax Description LOTS 7, 8, 9 & 10 BLK E BRANYON HEIGHTS PB 31-54

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 8/27/2018
Last Data Uploaded: 8/24/2018 11:56:29 PM

173 ft

Overview

Legend

Parcels

Parcel Line in ROW

Address Numbers

Roads

County Line



  
 

 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII. A  



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
TO: Ed Memmott, City Manager 
 
FROM: Martin Livingston, Neighborhood Services Director 
      
SUBJECT: Approval of Lawrence Johnson Sr. Lane Infrastructure Improvements 
 
DATE: September 10, 2018 
   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City of Spartanburg in an effort to continue improvements to the Forest Park Community is requesting 
approval of a contract to make infrastructure improvements to Lawrence Johnson Sr. Lane. This activity 
will include the installation of approximately 1,800 linear feet of curbing, 670 square yards of sidewalks, 
and the removal and replacement of asphalt for the development of the Forest Park subdivision. Sidewalks 
will be installed when the subdivision of 23 properties is substantially completed. Capitol Construction of 
the Carolinas was the only bidder at $115,184.15. Staff has reviewed the bid and determined the cost was 
reasonable and within estimates.  This request is consistent with the list of Southside Activities recently 
approved by City Council. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Staff is requesting approval for the City Manager to execute a contract with Capitol Construction of the 
Carolinas, Spartanburg, South Carolina in the amount of $115,184.15.    
 
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:     
 
Community Development Block Grant Funding: $115,184.15 





  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

VII. B 



 
 

 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager  
 
FROM: Jay Squires, Streets & Storm Water Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Holly Drive Culvert Improvement Project   
 
DATE: September 5, 2018 
 
 
BACKGROUND: Staff received bids for the installation of approximately 65 feet of 36 inch drainage pipe from 
under Holly Drive. The project would be near # 104 Holly Drive.  
 
 
The following bids were received:  

 
Saluda Construction    Greenville, S.C.  $63,515 
Faulkner Development & Engineering, LLC.  Sharon, SC $149,590 
Capitol Construction Spartanburg, S.C.  $234,858.21 

 
 
Staff has reviewed the bids and the qualifications for each of these contractors.  Based on that review, staff has 
determined that, Saluda Construction is the responsive low bidder. No bids were submitted from MWBE 
certified contractors.   It is anticipated that it will take 30 days (depending on weather) to complete this project.  
Staff will give neighborhood residents advance notice using door hangers and mailers. A portion of Holly Drive 
will be closed during construction for safety reasons. A detour route will be in place for convenience while the 
segment of road is closed.  
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Allow staff to accept the bids and authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Saluda Construction 
for the completion of the project. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
 
$63,515 to be paid from the Storm Water Construction Account.  
 
 



Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, USGS, Intermap, increment P
Corp., NRCAN, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri
(Thailand), MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the
GIS User Community

Proposed Culvert Project

²





  
 

 

VII. C 



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager   
 
FROM: Tim Carter, Engineering Administrator  
      
SUBJECT: Award of Contract for Infrastructure Improvements Projects  
 
DATE: April 23, 2018 
 
 
BACKGROUND:   Staff is seeking Council authorization to award a contract for three downtown 
infrastructure improvement projects.  The work under this contract will include streetscape improvements 
on the east side of North Church Street between the Montgomery Building and the Marriott Hotel,   
streetscape improvements on North Liberty Street between Commerce and East Saint John Streets, and 
improvements (lane realignment, left turn lane, and raised concrete median) at the intersection of Pine and 
East Main Streets.   
 
The North Church Streetscape project will include new sidewalk and pedestrian lighting on the east side of 
North Church Street from the Montgomery Building to the Marriott Hotel.     
 
The Liberty Streetscape project will provide a better and safer north/south pedestrian connection to/from 
the positive development occurring near the Chapman Cultural Center/Marriott Hotel to the development 
activity occurring on the south side of East St. John Street.  Wider sidewalks and pedestrian lighting will be 
installed.  
 
The Pine and East Main Street work will include a turn lane for southbound traffic (Pine to East Main), 
improved lane alignment at the Pine Street intersection, and a raised concrete median.     
 
Staff prepared contract specifications and publicly solicited for bids.   
 
Bids were received by:  
 
Sossamon Construction (Gaffney, SC)          $267,360.50 
 
AOS Specialty Contractors Inc. (Lexington, SC)      $302,237.00 
 
Capitol Construction of the Carolinas, LLC (Spartanburg, SC)  $314,960.50 
 
AOS Specialty is a certified MWBE contractor.  Sossamon is not a certified MWBE but, if awarded the 
contract, 23% of the contract work will be performed by MWBE certified subcontractors.  Capitol is not a 
MWBE contractor.                                                                                                              
 



 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Staff has reviewed the bids and is requesting Council authorization for the City 
Manager to enter into a contract with Sossamon Construction for this project.   
 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL DATA:   $267,265.50 from Tax Increment District Funds  
 



  
 

 

VIII. A 



   
 
 
 
 
   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Ed Memmott, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Dennis R. Locke, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Dr. TK Gregg Community Center Interim Financing  
 
DATE:  September 6, 2018 
 
 
Staff is requesting second reading approval of an ordinance that will authorize the borrowing of 
approximately $12.5 million for the interim financing of the Dr. TK Gregg Community Center.  The 
ordinance presented for second reading has been amended to add additional language regarding 
programming and use of the facility that make it an eligible hospitality tax supported capital project.    
 
Second reading approval of the ordinance will allow the city to proceed with the construction of the facility 
while staff continues to pursue New Markets Tax Credit funding.    



1858047v6 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
_________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____-9.10.18 
 
  AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 

A CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA, SPECIAL 
OBLIGATION BOND (HOSPITALITY FEE PLEDGE – JUNIOR LIEN), 
IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT EXCEEDING $12,500,000; 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR THE CITY MANAGER TO 
DETERMINE CERTAIN MATTERS WITH RESPECT TO THE BOND; 
PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF SUCH BOND; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 
Enacted: September 10, 2018 

 
_________________________________________________________________ 

 



 

2 
1858047v6 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED: 
 
 Section 1.  Definitions.  The terms in this Section 1 and all words and terms defined in General Bond 
Ordinance No. 12-604.4-10.25.10 (the "General Bond Ordinance") enacted by the Council on October 25, 
2010 (such General Bond Ordinance as from time to time amended or supplemented by Supplemental 
Ordinances being defined in the Ordinance as the "Ordinance") (except as herein otherwise expressly 
provided or unless the context otherwise requires), shall for all purposes of this Ordinance have the respective 
meanings given to them in the Ordinance and in Section 1 hereof. 
 
 "2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund" shall mean the Fund established pursuant to Section 13 
hereof. 
 
 "2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Fund" shall mean the Fund established pursuant to Section 7 hereof 
to provide for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 "2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund" shall mean the Fund, if any, authorized to be 
established pursuant to Section 8 hereof (a) to insure the timely payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Series 2018 Junior Bond; and (b) to provide for the redemption of the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 "2018 Junior Lien Projects" shall mean the acquisition and construction of the Tourism Facility.   
 
 "Bond of 2014" shall mean the City’s $8,250,000 original principal amount Special Obligation 
Refunding Bond (Hospitality Fee Pledge), Series 2014, dated April 1, 2014 and outstanding as of the date 
hereof in the principal amount of $5,465,000. 
 
 "Bond of 2016A" shall mean the City’s $4,005,000 original principal amount Special Obligation 
Refunding and Improvement Bond (Hospitality Fee Pledge), Series 2016A, dated May 19, 2016 and 
outstanding as of the date hereof in the principal amount of $3,465,000. 
 
 "Bond of 2016B" shall mean the City’s $6,130,000 original principal amount Special Obligation 
Bond (Hospitality Fee Pledge), Taxable Series 2016B, dated May 19, 2016 and outstanding as of the date 
hereof in the principal amount of $4,975,000. 
 
 "Bonds of 2016" shall mean, collectively, the Bond of 2016A and the Bond of 2016B.   
 
 "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 "General Bond Ordinance" shall mean General Bond Ordinance No. 12-604.4-10.25.10 duly enacted 
on October 25, 2010, by the Council of the City authorizing and providing for the issuance of Special 
Obligation Bonds (Hospitality Fee Pledge). 
 
 "Interest Payment Date or Dates" shall mean April 1 of each year, or April 1 and October 1 of each 
year, or such other date or dates as the Mayor or City Manager may determine, and commencing on such date 
as the Mayor or City Manager may determine, pursuant to Section 10 hereof. 
 
 "Ordinance" shall mean this Ordinance No. ___ authorizing the issuance of the Series 2018 Junior 
Bond. 
 
 "Paying Agent" shall mean The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Paying Agent 
for the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 



 

3 
1858047v6 

 "Principal Payment Date" shall mean April 1 of each year, or such other date as the Mayor or City 
Manager may determine, and commencing on such date as the Mayor or City Manager may determine, 
pursuant to Section 10 hereof. 
 
 "Purchaser" shall mean the initial purchaser of the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 

"Record Date" shall mean with respect to the Series 2018 Junior Bond the fifteenth (15th) day 
(whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month immediately preceding an Interest Payment Date. 
 
 "Registrar" shall mean The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Registrar for the 
Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 "Second Supplemental Ordinance" shall mean shall mean Second Supplemental Ordinance No. 12-
604.4-3.17.14 enacted by the Council of the City on March 17, 2014, which authorized the issuance of the 
Bond of 2014. 
 
 "Series 2018 Junior Bond" shall mean the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, Special Obligation 
Bond (Hospitality Fee Pledge – Junior Lien), [Taxable] Series 2018, in the principal amount of not exceeding 
$12,500,000, authorized to be issued hereunder. 
 
 "Third Supplemental Ordinance" shall mean Third Supplemental Ordinance No. 12-604.4-4.25.16 
enacted by the Council of the City on April 25, 2016, which authorized the issuance of the Bonds of 2016. 
 
 "Tourism Facility" shall mean an approximately 26,000 square foot indoor/outdoor tourism-related 
recreational facility to be constructed in the City and to be known as the “Dr. T.K. Gregg Center,” which is 
anticipated to include, without limitation, meeting space, a gymnasium, a fitness room, multipurpose space, a 
natatorium, athletic fields, walking paths and playground space.   
 
 "Trustee" shall mean The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee for the 
Bonds. 
 

Section 2.  Certain Findings and Determinations.  
 
 The City hereby finds and determines: 
 
 (a) The Bond Act, the Hospitality Tax Act and the General Bond Ordinance authorize the City 
to issue bonds in order to defray the Costs of Acquisition and Construction of the 2018 Junior Lien Projects. 
This Ordinance is enacted under the provisions of Section 3.5 of the General Bond Ordinance. 
 
 (b) The Series 2018 Junior Bond constitutes and is a "Junior Bond" within the meaning of the 
quoted word as defined and used in the General Bond Ordinance.     
 
 (c) The Hospitality Fees pledged under the General Bond Ordinance are not encumbered by any 
lien and charge thereon or pledge thereof, other than the pledge thereof created by the General Bond 
Ordinance and the Second Supplemental Ordinance for the payment and security of the Bond of 2014 and the 
Third Supplemental Ordinance for the payment and security of the Bonds of 2016.  Upon the issuance of the 
Series 2018 Junior Bond, the pledge of Hospitality Fees for payment of the Series 2018 Junior Bond will be 
junior, subordinate and inferior to the pledge thereof for payment of the Bond of 2014, the Bonds of 2016, 
and any Bonds hereafter issued under the General Bond Ordinance.   
 
 (d) There does not exist an Event of Default, nor does there exist any condition which, after the 
passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute such Event of Default. 



 

4 
1858047v6 

 
 (e) The City proposes to issue the Series 2018 Junior Bond in order to (i) defray a portion of the 
Costs of Acquisition and Construction of the 2018 Junior Lien Projects, (ii) pay Costs of Issuance and, (iii) if 
a 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund is established for the Series 2018 Junior Bond, fund all or a 
portion of the Reserve Fund Requirement applicable thereto, as determined by the Mayor or City Manager 
pursuant to Section 8 hereof.  The estimated cost of the 2018 Junior Lien Projects to be defrayed with the 
proceeds of the Series 2018 Junior Bond, including, without limitation, Costs of Acquisition and 
Construction, Costs of Issuance and any deposit therefrom into the 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve 
Fund to be made hereunder, does not to exceed $12,500,000.        
 
 (f) The 2018 Junior Lien Projects will advance proper public and corporate purposes of the 
City, and will benefit the City as a whole.  A vibrant tourism industry fosters and enhances the economic 
growth and well-being of a community and its residents.  Tourism has been and continues to be a growing 
industry for the City.  The City has and continues to have success in increasing tourism through the operation 
and management of sports and recreational tourism-related facilities such as the CC Woodson Community 
Center located in the City, which hosted a meeting conducted by the Office of the White House in 2016 in 
which there were 350 participants, many of whom traveled to the City from various locations across the 
United States to attend.  The City's Parks and Recreation Department’s mission is, in part, to provide a 
wholesome program of leisure, recreational, tourism and cultural opportunities and facilities to enhance the 
quality of life for City residents and visitors, and it frequently hosts events for user groups from throughout 
the upstate region and the State.  The Tourism Facility furthers that mission, and provides another venue from 
which to host such events in the City.   
 
 The Tourism Facility will attract tourists, including persons who do not reside in, but rather enter 
temporarily, for reasons of recreation or leisure, the corporate limits of the City.  The Tourism Facility will be 
designed to host different types of sporting and recreational events, and will include training rooms, locker 
rooms and concession facilities to support activities conducted therein. It is anticipated that the Tourism 
Facility will host both weekend and weekday events attracting visitors from outside the City.  For example, 
the natatorium is expected to host, as the home site for the Spartanburg High School Swim Team, regular 
meets in which teams from across the State will participate. As the City's tourism industry grows and 
expands, the City must make provision to increase municipal services and facilities in order to accommodate 
the needs of tourists and to attract additional tourism, and the City must make provision to increase municipal 
services and facilities in order to accommodate the needs of tourists and to attract additional tourism.  
Tourists enjoy and utilize the special benefits which the City provides.  
 
 Accordingly, the City hereby determines that the issuance of the Series 2018 Junior Bond and the use 
of the proceeds thereof to defray the Costs of Acquisition of the 2018 Junior Lien Projects will serve a public 
purpose because, among other things: 
 

 (i) The ultimate goals and benefits to the public intended by the 2018 Junior Lien 
Projects are multiple, including, but not limited to: the promotion of tourism to the City and the 
facilitation of tourism-related activities through the provision of tourism-related recreational facilities 
within the meaning of the Hospitality Tax Act, the provision of facilities and opportunities for 
recreational activities to City residents and tourists from outside the City, the enhancement of the 
economic development of the City, the creation of jobs, the eradication of blight within an area of the 
City known as the "Northside Community", and benefits, both tangible and intangible, that will result 
from all of the foregoing.     
 
 (ii) The public will be the primary beneficiary of the 2018 Junior Lien Projects.  While 
certain benefits of the 2018 Junior Lien Projects may accrue to private individuals or entities, such 
benefits will be incidental to the above-referenced public purposes.  The City will have ownership 
and/or control of the Tourism Facility and, thereby, ensure that the Tourism Facility will be used as a 



 

5 
1858047v6 

facility constituting a tourist destination within the meaning of the Hospitality Tax Act.    
 
 (iii) The benefits represented by the 2018 Junior Lien Projects are not speculative.  The 
events to be hosted at the Tourism Facility and the tourists they attract, and the regular use of the 
Tourism Facility by tourists, will have a substantial economic impact on the City.  The Tourism 
Facility is a necessary tourism-related building and tourism-related recreational facility within the 
meaning of the Hospitality Tax Act which will enhance the City's reputation as a destination for 
sports and recreation tourism.   
 
 (iv) The public interest of the City will be served to a substantial degree by the 2018 
Junior Lien Projects, which will enable the City to continue to attract sports and recreational tourists 
to the City, as well as provide a venue for enhanced recreational opportunities for City residents, all 
within an area of the City that has been targeted for redevelopment to attract private investment.   

 
 (g) The Council has been advised and recognizes that Hospitality Fees and the proceeds of the 
financing authorized by this Ordinance must be used exclusively for capital projects used to attract and 
support tourists within the meaning of the Hospitality Tax Act, e.g., the 2018 Junior Lien Projects.  The 
Council has given due consideration to the 2018 Junior Lien Projects, and the Council hereby further finds 
and determines that the 2018 Junior Lien Projects constitute capital projects used to attract and support 
tourists to the City, and the Tourism Facility will constitute a tourism-related building and tourism-related 
recreational facility within the meaning of the Hospitality Tax Act, and a Tourism Related Project within the 
meaning of the General Bond Ordinance.  The 2018 Junior Lien Projects will promote and enable additional 
tourism to the City. The 2018 Junior Lien Projects will allow the City to market and attract tourists to attend 
and participate in events held at the in the Tourism Facility.  Further, area businesses will benefit from the 
influx of attendees, participants and their families coming to the City to attend and participate in events held 
at the Tourism Facility and otherwise utilize the Tourism Facility. 
 
 (h) It is necessary and in the best interest of the City to authorize the issuance of the Series 2018 
Junior Bond in the principal amount of not exceeding $12,500,000 in accordance with the Bond Act, the 
Hospitality Tax Act, the General Bond Ordinance and this Ordinance for any of the purposes set forth above.  
The use of proceeds of the Series 2018 Junior Bond to assist with the acquisition of the 2018 Junior Lien 
Projects is proper, and will serve numerous, valid public purposes of the City.         
  
 (i) In compliance with the provisions of Section 3.5 of the General Bond Ordinance, the 
Council further finds and determines that (i) the Series 2018 Junior Bond is to be issued for the purpose of 
defraying the costs the 2018 Junior Lien Projects, which constitute Projects under the General Bond 
Ordinance, and (ii) the pledge of and lien on Hospitality Fees securing the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall at 
all times be subordinate and inferior to the pledge of and lien on Hospitality Fees securing the Bonds.    
 
 Section 3.  Authorization and Details of Series 2018 Junior Bond; Delegation of Authority to 
Determine Certain Matters Relating to the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 (a) There is hereby authorized to be issued a Series of Bonds designated "City of Spartanburg, 
South Carolina, Special Obligation Bond (Hospitality Fee Pledge – Junior Lien), [Taxable] Series 2018" (or 
year in which issued, with an appropriate series designation, with such other descriptive terms as may be 
appropriate) (the "Series 2018 Junior Bond") in the principal amount of not exceeding $12,500,000.  The 
proceeds of the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall be used for the purposes set forth in Section 2(e) hereof.   
 
 (b) The Series 2018 Junior Bond shall be represented by a single, fully registered bond; shall be 
registered in the name of the Purchaser; shall be dated the date of delivery or such other date as the Mayor or 
City Manager shall determine pursuant to Section 10 hereof; and shall be in the principal amount of not 
exceeding $12,500,000.  Unless otherwise determined by the Mayor or City Manager pursuant to Section 10 



 

6 
1858047v6 

hereof, the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall bear interest calculated on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of 
twelve 30-day months.  Principal and interest on the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall be payable on each 
Principal Payment Date and Interest Payment Date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to Section 10 
hereof, the Mayor or City Manager may determine to issue the Series 2018 Junior Bond in more than a single 
series.  In such event, (i) each series of the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall contain an appropriate series 
designation; (ii) the provisions of this Ordinance shall be interpreted to apply to all such series of the Series 
2018 Junior Bond; (iii) any funds or accounts to be established pursuant to this Ordinance shall contain 
appropriate designations to identify the particular series of the Series 2018 Junior Bond to which such funds 
or accounts relate; and (iv) the aggregate principal amount of all series of the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall 
not exceed $12,500,000.   
 

(c) Principal of and redemption premium, if any, on the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall be 
payable at the office of the Paying Agent.  Interest on the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall be payable on each 
Interest Payment Date, in each case to the Holder as of the immediately preceding Record Date, such interest 
to be paid by the Paying Agent by check or draft mailed to the Holder at the address as it appears on the 
Books of Registry maintained at the designated office of the Registrar, or by wire transfer to an account 
within the continental United States upon the timely receipt of a written request of such Holder.  Both the 
principal of and interest on the Series 2018 Junior Bond are payable at the designated office of the Paying 
Agent without presentation and surrender of the Series 2018 Junior Bond in any coin or currency of the 
United States of America which is, at the time of payment, legal tender for public and private debts; provided, 
the Paying Agent assumes no liability to any person in the event that the Holder should fail to return the 
Series 2018 Junior Bond to the Paying Agent after final payment, and no obligation will be imposed upon the 
Paying Agent to seek the return of the Series 2018 Junior Bond from the Holder thereof.     

 
 (d) The Series 2018 Junior Bond shall be in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto, 
with such necessary or appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are incidental to the maturities, 
dates, interest rate or rates, redemption provisions, the purpose of issuance and other details thereof or as are 
otherwise permitted or required by law or by the Ordinance, including this Ordinance.  The Mayor or the City 
Manager is empowered to include any additional provisions in the Series 2018 Junior Bond as requested by 
the Purchaser in accordance with its proposal to purchase the Series 2018 Junior Bond.   
 
 (e) The Council hereby authorizes the Mayor (or, in the absence of the Mayor, the Mayor Pro 
Tempore) to execute the Series 2018 Junior Bond in the name of the City, and authorizes the Municipal Clerk 
of the City to attest the manual signature of the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tempore, as applicable, under the seal of 
the City impressed, imprinted or reproduced thereon.  After execution of the Series 2018 Junior Bond by the 
City, the Registrar is hereby directed to authenticate the Series 2018 Junior Bond and deliver the Series 2018 
Junior Bond to the Purchaser.  
 
 Section 4.  Recording and Transfer of Ownership of the Series 2018 Junior Bond.  The Series 2018 
Junior Bond will be issued in fully-registered form, as a single Junior Bond representing the entire principal 
amount of the Series 2018 Junior Bond.  The City, the Paying Agent and the Registrar may treat the Holder 
as the sole and exclusive owner of the Series 2018 Junior Bond registered in its name for the purpose of 
payment of the principal of, and interest or premium, if any on the Series 2018 Junior Bond, giving any 
notice permitted or required to be given to the Purchaser or subsequent Bondholders under the General Bond 
Ordinance or this Ordinance, registering the transfer of the Series 2018 Junior Bond, obtaining any consent or 
other action to be taken by Bondholders and for all other purposes whatsoever, and shall not be affected or by 
any notice to the contrary.  
 
 Unless otherwise agreed to by the Mayor or City Manager, the Series 2018 Junior Bond may be sold 
or transferred by the initial Purchaser only to purchasers ("Qualified Investors") who execute an investment 
letter delivered to the City, in form satisfactory to the City (the "Investment Letter"), containing certain 
representations, warranties and covenants as to the suitability of such purchasers to purchase and hold the 



 

7 
1858047v6 

Series 2018 Junior Bond.  Such restriction shall be set forth on the face of the Series 2018 Junior Bond and 
shall be complied with by each transferee of the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
   
 Section 5.  Optional Redemption of Series 2018 Junior Bond. The Series 2018 Junior Bond shall be 
subject to prepayment or redemption prior to maturity on such terms as may be determined by the Mayor or 
the City Manager pursuant to Section 10 hereof.  In the event the Series 2018 Junior Bond is called for 
redemption, the Registrar shall give written notice of redemption to the registered Holder thereof as shown on 
the Books of Registry of the City not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for redemption thereof. 
 
 Section 6.  Payment of the Series 2018 Junior Bond. The Series 2018 Junior Bond, together with the 
interest thereon, shall be payable, in such coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time 
of such payment is legal tender for public and private debts, solely from the Hospitality Fees of the City in 
accordance with the provisions of the General Bond Ordinance and this Ordinance.  The pledge of 
Hospitality Fees securing payment of the Series 2018 Junior Bond is junior and subordinate to the pledge of 
Hospitality Fees for the Bond of 2014, the Bonds of 2016 and other Bonds Outstanding under the General 
Bond Ordinance from time to time.  The Series 2018 Junior Bond does not constitute an indebtedness of the 
City within any State constitutional provisions (other than Article X, Section 14, Paragraph 10 of the 
South Carolina Constitution authorizing obligations payable solely from special sources not involving 
revenues from any tax or license) or statutory limitation.  The Series 2018 Junior Bond shall not be a debt 
of the City, nor a charge, lien or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any property of the City or upon 
any income, receipts or revenues thereof, other than the aforesaid Hospitality Fees of the City.   No 
recourse shall be had for the payment of the Series 2018 Junior Bond or the interest thereon against the 
general fund of the City, nor shall the credit or taxing power of the City be deemed to be pledged thereto. 
The full faith, credit and taxing powers of the City are not pledged to the payment of the principal of or 
interest on the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 Section 7.  Establishment of 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Fund.  In accordance with Section 6.6 of 
the General Bond Ordinance, the 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Fund is hereby directed to be established by 
the Trustee on the date of the original delivery of the Series 2018 Junior Bond for the benefit of the Purchaser 
or subsequent Holders of the Series 2018 Junior Bond.  In addition, there is hereby directed to be established 
within the 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Fund an Interest Account and a Principal Account for the payment 
of interest and principal, respectively, on the Series 2018 Junior Bond as the same become due and payable.   
 
 The payments from Hospitality Fees authorized herein shall be made at the  time set forth in Section 
6.2 of the General Bond Ordinance after all payments required by the first and second paragraphs under 
Section 6.2 of the General Bond Ordinance have been made.  In the event the Series 2018 Junior Bond is 
issued in a calendar year other than 2018, the 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Fund may be re-named 
accordingly.   
 
 Section 8.  Debt Service Reserve Fund.  The Mayor or City Manager are authorized to determine 
whether to establish with the Trustee a 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund in connection with the 
Series 2018 Junior Bond in accordance with Section 6.7 of the General Bond Ordinance.  In the event that it 
is determined to establish a 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund, the Mayor or City Manager is 
further authorized to determine the Reserve Fund Requirement applicable thereto and the manner of funding, 
replenishing, adjusting and/or terminating such Reserve Fund Requirement.  In the event that it is determined 
to establish a 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund, such fund shall be (i) held by the Trustee for the 
benefit of the Purchaser or subsequent Holders of the Series 2018 Junior Bond, (ii) maintained in an amount 
equal to the applicable Reserve Fund Requirement in accordance with the terms and provisions of the 
General Bond Ordinance, and (iii) used and applied solely for the purposes set forth in the Section 6.7 of the 
General Bond Ordinance. In the event the Series 2018 Junior Bond is issued in a calendar year other than 
2018, the 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund may be re-named accordingly. 
 



 

8 
1858047v6 

 Section 9.  Designation of Trustee, Registrar and Paying Agent.   Pursuant to the General Bond 
Ordinance, the Trustee is The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.  The Council hereby 
designates The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as Trustee, Registrar and Paying Agent for 
the Series 2018 Junior Bond.  The Registrar and the Paying Agent shall signify their acceptances of their 
respective duties upon delivery of the Series 2018 Junior Bond.    
 
 Section 10.  Sale and Issuance of Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 (a) The Mayor or City Manager is hereby authorized and empowered to undertake any of the 
following activities, or, in the event any of the following activities have already been undertaken by the 
Mayor or City Manager, such actions are hereby ratified:  
 
  (i)  determine the original issue date of the Series 2018 Junior Bond;  
 
  (ii)  determine the principal amount of the Series 2018 Junior Bond, if less than 
authorized by this Ordinance;  
 
  (iii)  determine the Principal Payment Dates and principal repayment schedule for the 
Series 2018 Junior Bond; 
 
  (iv) determine the initial and subsequent Interest Payment Dates if different from that set 
forth herein;  
 
  (v) determine the optional redemption date and terms of optional or mandatory 
redemption of the Series 2018 Junior Bond;  
 
  (vi) approve the form of a Request for Proposals with respect to the Series 2018 Junior 
Bond and provide for the distribution of the Request for Proposals to various banks and other financial 
institutions in the City and other areas as the Finance Director of the City determines;  
 
  (vi)  determine the date and time for receipt of proposals for the sale of the Series 2018 
Junior Bond;  
 
  (vii) award the sale of the Series 2018 Junior Bond to the successful bidder therefor in 
accordance with the terms of the Request for Proposals; 
 
  (viii)  determine whether to establish the 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund 
and, if so established, determine the amount of and manner of funding the Reserve Fund Requirement 
applicable thereto;   
 
  (ix) determine whether to issue the Series 2018 Junior Bond in more than a single series;  
 
  (x) determine whether any series of the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall be issued on a 
federal tax-exempt basis and, if issued on a federal tax-exempt basis, whether the Series 2018 Junior Bond 
shall be designated as a bank-qualified bond under Section 265(b)(3) of the Code;  
 
  (xi)  determine whether the provisions of Section 6.8 of the General Bond Ordinance 
shall be applicable to the payment of the Series 2018 Junior Bond; and 
 
  (xii) agree to any other covenants, terms, provisions and matters necessary or advisable 
to effect the issuance of the Series 2018 Junior Bond, including, without limitation, agreements or covenants 
restricting the City’s ability to issue additional Bonds or Junior Bonds under the General Bond Ordinance 



 

9 
1858047v6 

while the Series 2018 Junior Bond remains outstanding, or such other terms as may be requested by the 
Purchaser. 
 
 (b) A copy of this Ordinance shall be filed with the minutes of the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was enacted. 
 
 (c) The Council hereby authorizes and directs all of the officers and employees of the City to 
carry out or cause to be carried out all obligations of the City hereunder and to perform such other actions as 
they shall consider necessary or advisable in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 
2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 Section 11.  Designation of Custodian.  The City Manager or the Finance Director of the City is 
authorized to designate the Custodian of the 2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund.  The Custodian shall 
signify its acceptance of its duties upon delivery of the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 Section 12. Disposition of Proceeds of Series 2018 Junior Bond and Certain Other Moneys.  A 
portion of the proceeds derived from the sale of the Series 2018 Junior Bond may be deposited in the 2018 
Junior Lien Debt Service Reserve Fund, if established pursuant to Section 8 hereof, to satisfy, in whole or in 
part, the applicable Reserve Fund Requirement.  The remaining proceeds derived from the sale of the Series 
2018 Junior Bond (less the Purchaser's underwriting fee, if any) shall be deposited in the 2018 Junior Lien 
Construction Fund established in Section 13 hereof to be used for and applied to the payment of Costs of 
Acquisition and Construction of the 2018 Junior Lien Projects and Costs of Issuance of the Series 2018 
Junior Bond in the manner provided in that section. 
 
 Section 13.  2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund.  There is hereby established the 2018 Junior Lien 
Construction Fund, which fund shall be held by the Custodian.  In the event the Series 2018 Junior Bond is 
issued in a calendar year other than 2018, the 2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund may be re-named 
accordingly.  The 2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund may be accounted for as a single fund or as multiple 
funds, however the moneys on deposit therein may be held by one or more banks or other financial 
institutions designated by the City.  The moneys on deposit in the 2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund shall 
be used and applied to the payment of the Costs of Acquisition and Construction of 2018 Junior Lien Projects 
and to pay Costs of Issuance.      
 
 Moneys held for the credit of the 2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund shall be invested, at the written 
direction of the City, to the fullest extent practicable and reasonable, in Permitted Investments, maturing at 
such times and in such amounts as shall be required to provide moneys to make the payments required to be 
made from 2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund.  Withdrawals from the 2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund 
shall be made in the manner withdrawals from other funds of the City are made. 
 
 If, after the payment in full of all Costs of Acquisition and Construction of the 2018 Junior Lien 
Projects and Costs of Issuance, any moneys remain in the 2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund, such excess 
shall, pursuant to written instructions of the City, be paid by the City to the Trustee, which shall deposit such 
moneys into a subaccount to be created only for the benefit of the Holder of the Series 2018 Junior Bond in 
the 2018 Junior Lien Debt Service Fund which shall be applied to pay the principal of or the interest on, or 
both, the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 In making any such payment from the 2018 Junior Lien Construction Fund, the Custodian may 
rely on such directions, requisitions and certifications delivered to it pursuant to this Section, and the 
Custodian shall not have any liability with respect to making such payments in accordance with such 
directions, requisitions and certifications for any liability with respect to the proper application hereof by 
the City. 
 



 

10 
1858047v6 

 Section 14.  Federal Tax Covenant.  To the extent that the Mayor or the City Manager determine that 
the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall be issued on a federal tax-exempt basis, the City hereby covenants and 
agrees with the Purchaser or subsequent Holders of the Series 2018 Junior Bond that it will not take any 
action which will, or fail to take any action which failure will, cause interest on the Series 2018 Junior Bond 
to become includable in the gross income of the Purchaser or subsequent Holders for federal income tax 
purposes pursuant to the provisions of the Code and regulations promulgated thereunder in effect on the date 
of original issuance of the Series 2018 Junior Bond and that no use of the proceeds thereof shall be made 
which, if such use had been reasonably expected on the date of issue of the Series 2018 Junior Bond would 
have caused such bond to be "arbitrage bonds," as defined in the Code; and to that end the City hereby shall: 
 
 (a) comply with the applicable provisions of Section 103 and Sections 141 through 150 of the 
Code and any regulations promulgated thereunder so long as the Series 2018 Junior Bond is Outstanding; 
 
 (b) establish such funds, make such calculations and pay such amounts, if necessary, in the 
manner and at the times required in order to comply with the requirements of the Code relating to required 
rebate of certain amounts to the United States; and 
 
 (c) make such reports of such information at the times and places required by the Code. 
 
 The City Manager or the Finance Director of the City are hereby authorized to adopt written 
procedures to ensure the City's compliance with federal tax matters relating to the Series 2018 Junior Bond.   
 
 It is the intention of Council that this Ordinance shall constitute a declaration of official intent 
pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the U.S. Treasury Regulations ("Regulation 1.150-2") to issue the Series 2018 
Junior Bond and to reimburse the City for expenditures made by the City with respect to the 2018 Junior Lien 
Projects incurred no earlier than 60 days prior to the date of this Ordinance (the "Expenditures").  The City 
understands that such Expenditures which may be reimbursed are limited to Expenditures which are (a) 
properly chargeable to a capital account (or would be chargeable with a proper election or with the 
application of the definition placed in service under Regulation 1.150-2) under general federal income tax 
principles; or (b) certain de minimis or preliminary expenditures satisfying the requirements of Regulation 
1.150-2.  The source of funds for the Expenditures will be the general fund reserves of the City or other 
lawfully available funds.  For the Expenditures to be eligible for reimbursement, the reimbursement 
allocation must be made not later than 18 months after the later of (i) the date on which the Expenditures 
were paid or (ii) the date the 2018 Junior Lien Project was placed in service, but in no event more than three 
(3) years after the date of the original Expenditures.  
 
 Section 15.  Continuing Disclosure. So long as and to the extent required pursuant to Section 11-1-85 
of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended ("Section 11-1-85"), the City covenants that it will 
file with a central repository for availability in the secondary bond market when requested: 
 
  (i) An annual independent audit, within 30 days of the City's receipt of the audit; and 
 
  (ii) Event-specific information within 30 days of an event adversely affecting more than 

5% percent of Hospitality Fees or the City's tax base. 
 
 The only remedy for failure by the City to comply with the covenant of this Section shall be an 
action for specific performance of this covenant; and failure to comply shall not constitute a default or an 
"Event of Default" under the General Bond Ordinance or this Ordinance. The City specifically reserves the 
right to amend or delete this covenant in order to reflect any change in Section 11-1-85, without the consent 
of the Purchaser or subsequent Holders of the Series 2018 Junior Bond. 
 
 Section 16.  2018 Junior Lien Projects; Further Actions.  The 2018 Junior Lien Projects are hereby 



 

11 
1858047v6 

approved.  The City Manager, in consultation with the City Attorney, is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute and deliver any agreements as may be necessary in order to undertake or facilitate the completion of 
the 2018 Junior Lien Projects by the City.  The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, City Manager, Finance Director 
of the City and the City Attorney are hereby authorized and directed to take any and all such further actions 
and execute deliver any and all documents and instruments as shall be deemed necessary or desirable in order 
to effectuate issuance of the Series 2018 Junior Bond, and the completion of the 2018 Junior Lien Projects.  
 
 Section 17.  Incorporation of Portions of General Bond Ordinance. The Series 2018 Junior Bond is 
hereby determined to be a Junior Bond issued pursuant to Section 3.5 of the General Bond Ordinance.  
Unless otherwise provided for in this Ordinance, the following provisions of the General Bond Ordinance 
shall be applicable to the Series 2018 Junior Bond and are made a part hereof for the benefit and security of 
the Holders of the Series 2018 Junior Bond from time to time, as though fully set forth herein, to wit: Section 
4.2 (Authentication); Section 4.3 (Registration and Transfer of Bonds; Persons Treated as Holders); Section 
4.4 (Form of Bonds; Denominations; Medium of Payment); Section 4.5 (Numbers, Date, and Payment 
Provisions); Section 4.6 (Exchange of Bonds); Section 4.7 (Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and 
Transfer); Section 4.8 (Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds); Article V (Redemption of Bonds); 
Article VI (Establishment of Funds; Security for and Payment of the Bonds; Investment of Moneys); Article 
VII (Covenants); Article VIII (Trustee; Custodians); Article IX (Amendments or Supplements to this 
Ordinance); Article X (Events of Default); Article XI (Remedies Upon Event of Default); Article XII 
(Defeasance); Section 13.1 (Benefits of Ordinance Limited to the City, the Trustee and Holders of the 
Bonds); Section 13.2 (Ordinance Binding Upon Successors or Assigns of the City); Section 13.3 (No 
Personal Liability); Section 13.4 (Effect of Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays); Section 13.5 (Partial 
Invalidity); and Section 13.6 (Law and Place of Enforcement of Ordinance). 
 
 Any provision, covenant and agreement of the General Bond Ordinance for the benefit and security 
of the Holders of the Bonds shall be and hereby is incorporated herein for the benefit and security of the 
Holders of the Series 2018 Junior Bond and shall be interpreted as applicable to Junior Bonds.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, compliance with Section 3.3 and 3.4 of the General Bond Ordinance shall not 
apply to the issuance of the Series 2018 Junior Bond, and debt service on the Series 2018 Junior Bond shall 
not be included in the calculation of Maximum Debt Service for purposes of the issuance of additional Bonds 
(as defined in the General Bond Ordinance) under Section 3.3 or Section 3.4 of the General Bond Ordinance.  
 
 In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Ordinance and the provisions of the General 
Bond Ordinance incorporated herein, the provisions of this Ordinance shall prevail.  
 
 Section 18.   Headings.  The headings and titles of the several sections hereof shall be solely for 
convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, interpretation or effect of this 
Ordinance. 
 
 Section 19.  Notices.  All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder or under the 
Ordinance shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when mailed by registered mail, postage 
prepaid, or given when dispatched by telegram addressed as follows: 
 
  If to the City: 
 
  City of Spartanburg, South Carolina 
  Attn: Finance Director 
  145 West Broad Street 
  Spartanburg, South Carolina 29306 
 
  If to the Paying Agent, the Registrar or the Trustee: 
 



 

12 
1858047v6 

  The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
  10161 Centurion Parkway North 
  Jacksonville, Florida 32256 
  Attention:  Corporate Trust 
 
 The City, the Paying Agent, the Registrar and the Trustee may, by notice given to the other parties, 
designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications 
shall be sent. 
 
 Each of the Registrar, the Paying Agent and the Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon 
directions given pursuant to this Ordinance delivered using Electronic Means (defined below); provided, 
however, that the Registrar, the Paying Agent and the Trustee, as applicable, have received an incumbency 
certificate listing persons designated to give such instructions or directions and containing specimen 
signatures of such designated persons (each an "Authorized Officer"), which incumbency certificate shall be 
amended whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing.  If the City elects to give the Registrar, 
the Paying Agent or the Trustee directions using Electronic Means and the Registrar, the Paying Agent or the 
Trustee in its discretion elects to act upon such directions, the Registrar's, the Paying Agent's or the Trustee's 
understanding of such directions shall be deemed controlling.  The City understands and agrees that the 
Registrar, the Paying Agent and the Trustee cannot determine the identity of the actual sender of such 
directions and that the Registrar, the Paying Agent and the Trustee shall conclusively presume that directions 
that purport to have been sent by an Authorized Officer listed on the incumbency certificate provided to the 
Trustee have been sent by such Authorized Officer.  The City shall be responsible for ensuring that only 
Authorized Officers transmit such directions to the Registrar, the Paying Agent and the Trustee, as applicable, 
and that all Authorized Officers treat applicable user and authorization codes, passwords and/or 
authentication keys as confidential and with extreme care.  Neither the Registrar, the Paying Agent nor the 
Trustee shall be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from their reliance upon 
and compliance with such directions notwithstanding such directions conflict or are inconsistent with a 
subsequent written direction.  The City agrees: (i) to assume all risks arising out of the use of Electronic 
Means to submit directions, including without limitation the risk of the Registrar, the Paying Agent or the 
Trustee acting on unauthorized directions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it 
is fully informed of the protections and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting such 
directions and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting directions; (iii) that the security 
procedures (if any) to be followed in connection with its transmission of directions provide to it a 
commercially reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs and circumstances; and (iv) to 
notify the Trustee immediately upon learning of any compromise or unauthorized use of the security 
procedures.  "Electronic Means" shall mean the following communications methods: e-mail, facsimile 
transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization codes, passwords and/or 
authentication keys, or another method or system specified by either the Registrar, the Paying Agent or the 
Trustee, as the case may be, as available for use in connection with its respective services hereunder. 
   
 Section 20.  Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances and Resolutions.  All ordinances and resolutions of 
the City, and any part of any ordinance or resolution, inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such inconsistency.   
 

Section 21.  Severability. If any sections, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be 
deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not attest the validity of the 
remaining portions thereof. 
 
 Section 22. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon its enactment. 
 
 



 

13 
1858047v6 

 
 
 
 
 
  

[Execution Page Follows] 
 



 

14 
1858047v6 

 Enacted by the City Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, this ___ day of 
___________, 2018. 
 
      CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
      ___________________________________________ 
      Mayor  
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Clerk  
 
 
First Reading:  August 27, 2018 
Second Reading:  September 10, 2018 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

[Execution Page] 
 
 
 
 



 

A-1 
1858047v6 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 FORM OF SERIES 2018 JUNIOR BOND 
 

TRANSFER RESTRICTED 
 

THIS BOND MAY BE SOLD OR TRANSFERRED IN WHOLE OR IN PART ONLY 
TO A PURCHASER OR TRANSFEREE CONSTITUTING A QUALIFIED INVESTOR 
(AS SUCH TERM IS DEFINED IN THE HEREAFTER DEFINED JUNIOR BOND 
ORDINANCE UNDER WHICH THIS BOND IS ISSUED), AND ONLY UPON SUCH 
QUALIFIED INVESTOR DELIVERING TO THE CITY AN INVESTMENT LETTER 
IN THE FORM REQUIRED UNDER THE JUNIOR BOND ORDINANCE 

 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
$_________________ 

SPECIAL OBLIGATION  BOND (HOSPITALITY FEE PLEDGE – JUNIOR LIEN)  
[TAXABLE] SERIES 2018 

 
 The City of Spartanburg, South Carolina (the "City"), is justly indebted and, for value received, 
hereby promises to pay to _________________ (the "Purchaser"), its successors or registered assigns, but 
solely from the Hospitality Fees (hereinafter mentioned) and not otherwise, the principal amount of 
$_____________ and to pay interest, but solely from the Hospitality Fees, on such principal amount from the 
date hereof until this Bond matures or is earlier redeemed.  Interest on this Bond shall accrue at the rate of 
___% per annum, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months, and is 
payable as to principal and interest at maturity on __________ __, 2019 [or such earlier date as this Bond is 
redeemed].   
 
 THIS BOND HAS BEEN ISSUED UNDER THE PROCEDURES OF TITLE 6, CHAPTER 17, 
AND THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE 6, CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 7, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH 
CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED, AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE 
CITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY  STATE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISION (OTHER THAN 
ARTICLE X, SECTION 14, PARAGRAPH 10 OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA CONSTITUTION 
AUTHORIZING OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE SOLELY FROM SPECIAL SOURCES NOT INVOLVING 
REVENUES FROM ANY TAX OR LICENSE) OR STATUTORY LIMITATION.  THE CITY IS NOT 
OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF THIS BOND OR THE INTEREST HEREON EXCEPT 
FROM HOSPITALITY FEES.  THIS BOND IS NOT A GENERAL OBLIGATION OF THE CITY, THE 
STATE OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF AND NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND 
CREDIT NOR TAXING POWERS OF THE CITY, THE STATE OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION 
THEREOF HAS BEEN PLEDGED THERETO.   
 
 Both the principal of and interest on this Bond are payable at the designated office of The Bank of 
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., in East Syracuse, New York (the "Paying Agent"), without 
presentation and surrender of this Bond in any coin or currency of the United States of America which is, at 
the time of payment, legal tender for public and private debts; provided, the Paying Agent assumes no 
liability to any person in the event that the Holder should fail to return this Bond to the Paying Agent upon 
maturity or after final payment and any such liability shall be borne by the Holder, and no obligation will be 
imposed upon the Paying Agent to seek the return of this Bond from the Holder.  
 
 This Bond is issued under, pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution and statutes of 
the State of South Carolina, including particularly Article X, Section 14(10) of the South Carolina 



 

A-2 
1858047v6 

Constitution, the procedures of Title 6, Chapter 17 and the provisions of Title 6, Chapter 1, Article 7 of the 
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the "Act").  This Bond is issued under and 
pursuant to General Bond Ordinance No. 12-604.4-10.25.10 (the "General Bond Ordinance") of the City 
Council of the City duly enacted on October 25, 2010, and by Ordinance No. ________-9.10.18 of the 
Council enacted on September 10, 2018, (the "Junior Bond Ordinance" and, together with the General Bond 
Ordinance, the "Bond Ordinance"), under the Act which Bond Ordinance has been duly codified and indexed 
as prescribed by law. 
 
 The holder of this Bond is deemed to have consented to the amendment to the General Bond 
Ordinance set forth in the Second Supplemental Ordinance (as such term is defined in the Junior Bond 
Ordinance).  Such amendment provides that the underwriter or purchaser of any Series of Bonds is authorized 
to assent to and consent to an amendment to the General Bond Ordinance in the same manner as the Holders 
of the Bonds. 
 
 The Bond Ordinance contains provisions defining terms (and capitalized terms not otherwise defined 
herein have the meanings set forth therein); sets forth the Hospitality Fees pledged for the payment of the 
principal of and interest on this Bond and the Bonds of other series herewith which have heretofore or may 
hereafter be issued on a superior basis or on a parity herewith under the Bond Ordinance; sets forth the 
nature, extent and manner of enforcement of the security of this Bond and of such pledge, and the rights and 
remedies of the holder hereof with respect thereto; sets forth the terms and conditions upon which and the 
extent to which the Bond Ordinance may be altered, modified and amended; sets forth the terms and 
conditions upon which this Bond has been issued or upon which other Bonds may be hereinafter issued 
payable as to principal, premium, if any, and interest on a superior basis or on a parity with this Bond and 
equally and ratably secured herewith; sets forth the rights, duties and obligations of the City thereunder; and 
sets forth the terms and conditions upon which the pledge made in the Bond Ordinance for the security of this 
Bond and upon which the covenants, agreements and other obligations of the City made therein may be 
discharged at or prior to the maturity or redemption of this Bond with provisions for the payment thereof in 
the manner set forth in the Bond Ordinance. Reference is hereby made to the Bond Ordinance to all of the 
provisions of which any holder of this Bond by the acceptance hereof thereby assents. 
 
 This Bond and the interest hereon is a special obligation of the City and is secured by and payable 
solely from, and secured by a pledge of and lien upon, the Hospitality Fees imposed and collected by the 
City.  Payment of such Hospitality Fees shall be made after all required payments have been made to the 
Debt Service Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund, if established, and the provider of any surety bond, line 
of credit, insurance policy or letter of credit for interest on amounts advanced thereunder for each Series of 
Bonds Outstanding (as such terms are defined in the General Bond Ordinance) in accordance with the first, 
second and third paragraphs of Section 6.2 of the General Bond Ordinance.  The pledge of Hospitality Fees 
for payment of this Bond is junior and subordinate to the pledge of Hospitality Fees for payment of the Bond 
of 2014 and the Bonds of 2016 (as such terms are defined in the Junior Bond Ordinance), and any Bonds 
hereafter issued under the General Bond Ordinance. 
 
 This Bond is subject to redemption in whole at any time, at par together with accrued interest to the 
date of redemption.  In the event this Bond is called for redemption, the Registrar shall give written notice to 
the Holder hereof as shown on the Books of Registry of the City not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date 
fixed for the redemption thereof.  
 
 Pursuant to the Junior Bond Ordinance, certain provisions of the General Bond Ordinance are made 
applicable to this Bond and are made part of the Junior Bond Ordinance for the benefit and security of the 
Holder of this Bond form time to time, as though fully set forth in the General Bond Ordinance (the 
"Incorporated Provisions").  To the extent and in the manner permitted by the terms of the Bond 
Ordinance, certain provisions of the General Bond Ordinance, including portions of the Incorporated 
Provisions, may be amended without the consent of any Holder of the Bonds then Outstanding under the 



 

A-3 
1858047v6 

General Bond Ordinance, and certain other provisions of the General Bond Ordinance may be amended or 
modified by the City with the written consent of the Holders of at least sixty-six and two thirds percent 
(66-2/3%) in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding under the Bond Ordinances; provided, that 
no such amendment or modification shall (a) extend the time of payment of principal of or the interest on 
any Bond, or reduce the principal amount thereof or the rate of interest thereon or the premium payable 
upon the redemption thereof, or (b) give to any Bond or Bonds any preference over any other Bond or 
Bonds, or (c) authorize the creation of any pledge prior to or, except as provided in the General Bond 
Ordinance, on a parity with the pledge afforded by the General Bond ordinance, or (d) reduce the 
percentage in principal amount of the Bonds required to assent to or authorize any such modification to 
the General Bond Ordinance.   
 
 Under the laws of the State of South Carolina, this Bond and the interest hereon are exempt from all 
State, county, municipal, school district and all other taxes or assessments, except estate or other transfer 
taxes, direct or indirect, general or special, whether imposed for the purpose of general revenue or otherwise.  
 
 It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required by the 
Constitution and statutes of the State of South Carolina to exist, to happen and to be performed precedent to 
and in the issuance of this Bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and 
manner as required by law; that the series of which this Bond is a part does not exceed any constitutional or 
statutory limitation of indebtedness; and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and 
interest on this Bond and the series of which it is a part, as provided in the Bond Ordinance. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, has caused this Bond to be 
executed on the ____ day of ___________, 2018, in its name by the [manual][facsimile] signature of the 
Mayor of the City and attested by the [manual][facsimile] signature of the Municipal Clerk of the City under 
the seal of the City impressed, imprinted or reproduced hereon. 
 
       CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
       By:_________________________________ 
(SEAL)               Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Municipal Clerk 
 

REGISTRATION/AUTHENTICATION 
 
 This Bond has been registered in the name of First-Citizens Bank & Trust Company on the 
registration books kept by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Registrar.   
 
 Dated this ____ day of ____________, 2018. 
 
 
      The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
 
      By:        
       
      Its:         
  




